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Despite the fact that the stimulus actuating most
of the earll settlers of New England in emigratinq to
this countn' r,r'as based upon their desire to secure Re-
Iigious as rr'eli as Civil Libertt'; immediateli' thel' be-
camc established in the new land, ther- themselves
began to set up forms of government no less rigid than
those thel had escaped. And thev further appeared to
feel no cor.rscientious qualms in inrposing their ideas and
fornrs upon all those who came to live in their newll,
settled communities. And this was one of the several
factors-and certainll, not the least important among
them-that soon caused the removal of individuals or
groups fror:-r the first settlenrents, to seek out other lo-
cations for then.rselves-and so brought about the es-
tablishment of a number of what were, at first, the
most remote colonies.

-{mong the earliest groups to detac}r themselves
fron.r the first settlements in the }lassachusetts Bav
Colony were a number of families from Newtown (now
Cambridge, Ilass.) who settled in Hartford, under the
Rev. Thomas Hooker; while another group of people
fror:.r Watertown settled Weathersfield, under John'Ialcot as leader-and still a third group, from Dor-
chester, established themselves at Windsor, also in
lvhat is now the State of Connecticut.

\{eanu.hile, Roger Williams had been forced to
make his escape from Salem, Massachusetts, in the
winter of 1635-1636, settling first in Seekonk (at East
Providence, but still vl,ithin the Massachusetts control,
as that area \\-as claimed by Plymouth), and then later

-ill 
ol-der to avoid all possible controversy-moving

across to the west side of the river, establishing him-
self where now is the citv of Providence. The first
houses there built were located near the present Baptist
Church, which was built in 1775 on the site of the first
Nfeeting House of Roger trVilliams.

Portsmouth (Rhode Island) was settled by Anne
Hutchinson and others; following Coddington and
Clarke, who had first settled there and then removed
further to the south, to Newport-at a still safer dis-
tance from the militant Bay Qolont.s! As usual, these
first settlements were established either along the sea

coast, especialll' where sheltered harbors or river
mouths gave propitious locations; or along the larger
rivers inland from the coast; or upon the shores of the
many estuaries or deepcut bat's and jnlets with which
the coast of Rhode fsland, particularly, is lavishly in-
dented.

Man1. of these earl1. settlements r.r'ere made in the
southern portion of the State. In 1639 a trading post
was set up at Cocumscussic (now Wickford), just
after the outbreak of the Pequot War, in 1637. Thet'King's Provincer" or Narragansett County, was also
established, at the southwestern present border of
Rhode Island; while the State itself secured its charter
in 1663, and Williams died in 1683, after having
firmly established a system of sovernmenl th21-unljkg
the Massachusetts settlements-made a definite divi-
sion between Church and State.

With all this uncertaintt' of permanence, it can
readily be seen that the earlr trpes of dwelling archi-
tecture were likely to have been of the sirnplest. And
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so l't w:rs that a "one-room house') plan bccamc most
characteristic of the first houses built in the woods and
lneadows of this cotrntrl', that was to grow il)to a scp-
arate Statc, bLrt had passed all its early years in an un-
certain state of suspension between thc colonies of
Massachusetts Bal' on the north, and the closely affili-
ated branch settlemerlts to the u,est and south, that had
been set up along the' r,allel' of the Connectictrt b1'

groups of people largelf from the Nlassachusctts :rrea.
The tt<lne-r<lom house" had usuallt' onc room onl1,

rupon its first floor; and was a stor)'and a lralf high,

with a "one-roorn attic" above. Some of the simplest
dwellings had so lou' a roofridge that the area above

the ceiling could onlt' be trsed for storage. Sot'uetimes,
by aid of a iadder, it could be used as a sort of barracks
for the children of a farnily. And then it nright often
be reached b1. a real stairwa).-and even pcrhaps boast
of a small fireplace, all its own! Finall1,, a few ex-
amples probabll, tnay have had two full-height rooms,
one over the other, with an attic above both. One of
the most interesting and puzzling examples of this
t1'pe is the Eleazcr Arnold Hottse at Litrcoln, perhaps

even better known locallt- as the "Stone Chimnev
House."

Within a comparativell srlr.ll arca tlpoll the old
road that still twists its way along the stream thxt
widens into pond after pond-themselves the remains
of old power- sites, held in by old stone dnms, itt mrtnv
instances n()w so overgrown with trees as hardly to be

noted as artificial to the landscape-mat' still be found
nearh. a dozen old dwellings that once belonged to
some member of the old Arnold family. fn recent 1'ears
some hal,e hecomc str changed that their olcl values and

interest have heen lost; but the Eleazer Arnold house;
although changed in man1, wat's from its simple orig-
inal, 1'et rcmains among the most picturesqtre survivals
of the late Se'r,enteenth Centurl' stnlctures to be seen
in the region of the "Providence Plantations."

An endear.or has been made to plot at least the most
important changes that e\.;dence thernsclvcs in the
existing fabric of this old structure-:rs thcrc' are con-
tradictorl, theories as to its origins and evolution into
its present forrn. ft now stands as it was restored a

dozen ,rr s() \'grs ago, through both lt,cal and New
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"One-roont House" Part Bui.lt About 1687
ELEAZER ARNOLD HOUSE ("THE, STONE CHIMNEY HC)USE"), LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
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England interest. In the attic, the framing of a steep

front gable still shovus plainll', though it was not re-
placed when the last restoration was made. At that
time, a number of smaller fireplaces and several old
ove.ns were removed from the northeast corners of the
two first-floor chimneys. The southern end of the pres-
ent house was probabil, part of the last additions made
in olden times; with the comparativell. new brick
chimney stack, that shows onlf in the rear views of
the building. All the other changes must have been

of very early date; n.rade soon after the original por-

stort' fireplace, that occurs only in the room over the
front section of the du,eliing-and was unquestionably
built against the south face of the alreadr completed
stone chimnet' serving the large fireplace of the room
below-

That the room at the rear was built after the stone-
work of the westernmost fireplace was completed
would appear probable from the fact that its chimney
stonework does not align with the earlier chimney, and
exhibits obvious adjustments made to fit it to the fram-
ing lines established by the older corner posts and the

East Eleoation
THE ELEAZER ARNOLD HOUSE, LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

tion of the house, dating from about l68 7, was
erected.

This may have been one of the characteristic local
"one-room houses"; of which the older EII portion of
the fsrael Arnold house nearby furnishes an indubitable
example. In that event) the present small closet at the
northeast corner of the building m:ry have contained
a steep staircase to the attic above. (It is of just about
the size and proportions of the staircase space in the
Israel Arnold House Ell nearby.) Another contribu-
tary piece of evidence may be found in the second-

newer chimney girder framing into then.r at the sec-
ond-floor level. On the other hand, it mar. be that the
"one-room plan" of the original section was two
stories high, either in its original, or in nearlt' as early a

second state-and that the rear room on the first floor
was built to come within a rear "leantor" whose pos-
sible outlines have been dotted across the northwest
corner in the Cross Section drawing.

In that e\rent, the oddly framed eight-foot-wide
addition made across the entire back of the building-
with its northeast corner closet, probably the "buttery"
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THE X,I ONOGRAPH SERIES

(Measured Dro"aings on Page 6)
THE ELEAZER ARNOLD HOUSE, LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
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-may have been put on at the time the present deeper
second story, and newer ttleanto" rafters, now appear-
ing in the attic leaning against the older roof timbers
from the ridge eastward, were put in place; or it may
have been a widening added at quite another period;
perhaps at about the time the house was made longer
on its street face by the newer southern end; which
was apparently erected before-or at the same time-
that the front gable was framed into the old roof tim-
bering on the west front. Some of the windows are
old, and some of later date also appear. The front en-
trance and doorway belong to the earl1, Nineteen

western side still remains much as it was originally
built. This fortunately contains the huge fireplace with
brick wings and stone back that shows in photograph
and drawing; flanked on the north by the old stair-
case to the attic space above and on the south by a
closet space, most of which is taken up by the huge
three-foot-long domed oven, that has been built within
it, upon a stone slab set 16 inches above the floor. The
stone fireplace back has been backed again by a wall
of brick that shows outside; and the gambrel roof given
the old house indicates both its (comparatively) late
date and a probable need or desire for larger capacity

ANOTHER ARNOLD HOUSE, LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

Century; and may not mark the location of the first
doorway. The more one studies the arrangement of
this building in its present state, the more possible vari-
ants in the various stages of its development appear;
most of which will probably alwal's remain in the realm
of conjecture !

\\ihatever the original "Stone Chimne,l' House"
plan may have becn, there can be no doubt but that
the present "Ell" of the Israel Arnold hor.rse nearby
still stands in almost the identical condition in which it
existed from before 1700 up to the time the larger pres-
ent house was added to it, some 1'ears later. The closing
of u,indow's and opening of doors ir.r its eestern wall
must have been occasioned bt. the addition of the later
house at that side of the original stnrcture; but its

of the second-floor space. The chimney tops of both
houses have been changed and the chimneys stuccoed;
but the old "Fireroom" remains in its identical original
condition, with the staircase and closets, and even the
old ttcatts cradle" with its four-inch circular entrance,
appears in the first step riser showing below the door
at the right of the fireplace.

The larger house has sirnple finish, and a charac-
teristic stairway, along with a type of mantel treat-
ment that is representative of some of the local tradi-
tions, including even the cupboard or set of open
.helves-u"nally with a sloping back-that often ap-
pears hereabouts, in the space over the fire opening-
whereas northern Nerv England more frequently srrp-
plies instead a large panel in the or,er-mantel.
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fn the same general neighborhood are to be found
two other existing records of this early type of struc-
ture. One, just off a newly widened thoroughfare, ex-
tending toward the north from Providence, is now no
more than a store shed in a farmyard group. But little
of its old framework remains, only one or two of the
rafters, a corner post or so; a bit of old shingled wall,
a few small areas of old split laths and plaster-and the
chimney, with its stone back showing through the old
end-wall of the building! The old brick domed oven
and stonework of the fireplace show clearly its age;

ty,pe. Nevertheless, a considerable part of its existing
structure 

- 
including the odd fireplace and chimnel'

-must 
be original enough to permit its inclusion

within this group of a fast-vanishing type of local early
dwelling, for rvhat evidence and interest it may sti1l

supply. Little is known about its history. It would ap-
pear that there may have been an upper floor across
the building at one time, from the single piece that
still remains along each side plate, under the ends of
the slopinr rafters. No trace of staircase may now be

found. It ma1. have been merely either a permanerlt

THE CAPTAIN JOHN JENCKS HOUSE, LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND

while the upper portion, built of brick above the fire
opening, may now be seen above the cross ceiling pieces

to the under side of the roof boarding. About all the old
finish, and wall boarding, have disappeared; and the
rest may vanish almost any day-unless means soon
may be taken to preserve itl This is a type where the
attic space could only have been used for storage) as

it is barely five feet high under the roof peak.

In the old "Fireplace House," in Lincoln Woods,
which stands in the shadow of another Arnold House,
dating from before 1750; the interior also lies open to
view. But this house has been in some part "restored,"
as appears obvious from any close study of its frame-
work and enclosing walls, and therefore it is not to
be entirely accepted as an authentic example of its

wall ladder, or a removable central one. The very
small and low brick fireplace in the side of the left
stone cheek of the larger one, is supposed to have been
used for the drying of spinning flax, in which case a
small room ma1' have been partitioned off at the end
of the present space, to have been used for that pur-
pose.

No oven now remains; but quite a large hole in the
stonework at the rear of the fireplace back shows
where either a domed oven outside the fireplace corner
n-ray have been made-or it may have been, as some
believe, an outside door into an inner corner oven-in
which case there maY at one time have been an outer
"summer kitchen" agar'nst that end wall of the present
building. HrNnv \V. GanpNpn
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Original $One-roomz Ho*seD Portio.tt,
THE ISRAEL ARNOLD HOUSE-c. 1700-LINCOLN, RHODE ISLAND
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